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MITCHELL _ WITNESS

o'clock in the morning, 9:30 in the morning' I hras

expected to put a (unintetligible' one word) of Iinks

from around the Internet of interesting storiesr so

that people would get up. They'd sign on' Nation

readers would go to the site and they'd say, oh,

there's Greg Mitchell's Daybook. The 10 great links,

I don't know about and then during the day I would

keep adding links to it. Um, so that was certainly

every day.

Then I started ülikileaks. V'lhich was seven days a

week, üITtr not just weekdays. Um, then when that

ended there may have been a period where it was three

times a week, four times a week. I would say, well,

if you don't have any particular day well, that's

okay. You're producing a lot of stuff. You know,

you're doing great stuff three or four times a week'

Enough to do it five times a week. And then Occupy

Wall Street, again it was seven days a week for six

months. Uh, then there was a period where, urì, in

the final- year I think before the final yearr uffi,

Katrina and Richard Kim felt that, uR, it would be

better -- maybe it would be better for the audience

or whatever that I would write one major piece a week

instead of four or five short pieces. Uh, I
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MITCHELL - h]TTNESS

o. Right. And you, uh, before you were did, uh, work

for The Nation magazine you $rere an editor and

publisher. Can you teII us what that job was?

I was the editor of Editor & Publisher magazíne,

national magazine for, ì-lrnr I was there for f0 years,

the last 8 years was as the edj-tor.

ALJ DOMINIQUE: And I apologize. Not to

A.

interrupt, Mr. Silverman. I am sorry for your loss.

f think, ümr just trying to çtet through aI1 these

hearings I kind of overlooked that. Okay. Um --

MR. SILVERI4AN: f appreciate that .

ALJ DOMINIQUE: Okay.

Mr. Mitchell, you may go ahead.

MR. SILVERMANBY

o. And, um -- and how many years were you

(unintelligible, one second, 0:07: 19) ?

Um, four years and three months.

During that period of time, u¡n, did you perform work

for any other organizations?

Um, I wrote blog posts for Huffington post off and

on. There was a period where f wrote quite a few and

a period (uninteIIigibIe, one second, 0:07:43)

encouraged to by Nation and a period where f didn,t

write at all uR, other organizations, íf you mean,

A.

a.

A.

Ail
The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners 04/16/15 11
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MITCHELL - ü]ITNESS

Iike media and you know, you're the perfect person

for it. Um, sor uR, so what -- and it was, you

know -- that's, uh -- that's how I remember it.

O. [¡las there a discussion aboutr urn, payment?

A. Oh, sure. Sure.

O. Please tell me about how those discussi-ons urent.

A. WeIl, the dj-scussions were she said, what do you

think you'd need to do this and I said, in my memory,

uilr about S50r000- Um, you know, for what -- what

would be, um, um, cash, you know, f said. $50r000.

Um, and she then and again we I re getting into the

other hearing here, uh, she then worked

out -- somehow worked out -- it turned out that I got

a good share of that from The Nation Institute but

she was the one who always said, this is what you can

get. This is what we can offer you, uR, I never

talked to The Nation Institute about money and

somehow it was always Katrina and she was like, okay,

here is your lump sum. you're going to get it from

two places butr lou know, this is what you'11 get.

So, you know, and I -- I mean I think I bargained her

up a couple thousand the first time when she

offered --

O. Did you get around 50,000

The Nation Co. Ltd partners - 03/IO/L5
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KIM _ WITNESS

supervision of the work.

ALJ DOMINIQUE: Okay.

MR. SILVERMAN: Mary van Valkenburg doesn't get

involved in the supervision. She's more in the

technicaJ- aspect of the rel-ationship.

BY ALJ DOMINIQUE

a. Okay. !VeII, do you know how Mr. Mitchell came to

work with, uh, The Nation?

A. Um, f donrt I don't know the details. Um, I think

Greg was already worked -- writing for us when I came

onboard as

O. So (unintelligibJ-e, one second, 0:I4:29)

A. I think -- I think -- I think Greg was already

writing for us when I -- when I became editor of the

V'leb siter urn --

O. Um, do you know anything about the arrangements, unìr

how -- who was it negotiated, what the arrangement

was ?

A. There was a monthly retainer that r^/as pal-d to him

f rom The Nati-on magazine.

MR. SILVERMAN: Perhaps, Your Honor, we could

just stipulate to the initial contract. I mean,

um -- I can show you a copy of the initial agreement

and Mr. Mitchell can lcok at i-t anC vJe

ß-,1ß)
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MITCHELL - !{ITNESS

O. And the, u¡n, Nationts share or --

A. No. The Nation -- f -- f don't know how muchr 1zou

know, overlapping with this morning. But, un, I -- I

received two contracts and two checks from The Nation

Magazine and The Nation fnstitute and, um, I believe

the first year about two thirds was The Nation

Magazine and the second year it flipped. It was

about two-thirds Nation Institute. And, um, by the

final year it was exactly the same. It was less

money and exactly the same. So it varied, you know,

the -- my contract varied every year.

Did you --

But I think the high was probably about 32,000 and

the low was probably 15,000.

!'lhen did you start working there?

Uh, about March of, üh, 2010.

And when did you last work there?

Uh, well the -- the contract, uh, ran out in March of
20L4 but it was f -- f -- I continued to get paid

without a contract, uh, until June 30th.

And r know you said.that you were a writer there for
a specific -- was it that you did --

Um, wel-l, mainly f wrote, üh, this daily or nearly

daily blog. On, urn, we basically, media and poJ_itics

The Nation Co- Ltd partners - O3/IO/IS il-
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

rejected exhibit fire. so the case is appeal-ed we

will have this report in the event that

ALJ DOMINIQUE: We actual-ly do not have, uh,

such a fil_e in our administrative decisions.

MR. SILVERMAN: you just reject it

ALJ DOMINIeUE: Uh, for retaining them, no.

MR. SILVERMAN: Um, uh, is

MR. SILVERMANBY

o. Did you serve as editor of Nuclear Times from , 82 to

'86?

Uh-huh.

And you wrote various articr-es about üüorrd û{ar rr for
that ? (UninteJ. J_ igibte, three words ) Worl_d t{ar

issues.

Yes. Uh-huh.

And you wrote several_ books about (uninteLligible,

one second, 0:12:I4) campaign?

uh, it's two different -- well, one book on t.hat and

one book on another campaign, yes.

And those you wrote to --

V'IeII, in the 19BOs, 1990s, correct.

Uh-huh. And¡ um, recent books dealt with press and

government and, uil, what other issues did you write
about while you were blogging for The Nation?

A.

O.

A.

a.

A.

a.

A

O.

û tîú)
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MITCHELL - I^IITNESS

A. Oh, I wrote, LrR -- I wrote I wrote a book about

Wikileaks. I wrote a book about Bradley Manning who

bras involved in Wikileaks case. Uh, I actuall-y

coauthored a book about that. I co-wrote a book

about, uÍr, Beethoven and the j-nfl-uence in culture and

poJ-itics. Um, I dj-d a brief digital book on, urrìr my

past interviews with (unintel-Iigible, one second,

0:13:10). Um, I did research on --

o. Are you working on a book now about your

Germany -- Tunnel-s of Germany?

Wel- l , that ' s my next pro j ect .

Your next project?

Yeah. Yeah.

A.

O.

A

a. And so what does it invol-ve in that.

MR. MEJIA: Objection. That is outside the

scope of the time frame of the determination.

MR. SILVERMAN: But it's in the time frame of

the determination. He's worki-ng on it coming

up -- he's working on it, nohr.

ALJ DOMINIQUE: Um --

MR. SILVERMAN: He was working on it b/hile he

was bloggì-ng for The Nation. That's the question.

ALJ DOMINQUE: Okay. You can ask that question.

fs that correct, Mr.Mitchell?

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners - 04/76/15 16
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

A. And ther urn¡ Nationrs share or --
A. No. The Nation -- I -- f don't know how much, you

know, overlapping with this morning. Butr urrtr I __ I
received two contracts and two checks from The Nation

Magazine and The Nation rnstitute and, uftr r berieve

the first year about two thirds was The Nation

Magazine and the second year it ftipped. It was

about two-thirds Nation rnstitute. And, unr by the

final year it was exactly the same. ft was less

money and exactly the same. So it varied, you know,

the -- my contract varied every year.

Did you --

But r think the high was probabr-y about 32,000 and

the low was probably 15,OOO.

o.

A.

O. ülhen did you start working there?

A. Uh, about March of, uh, 2OlO.

O. And when did you last work there?

A. uh, werr the -- the contract, uh, ran out in March of

2014 but it was r -- r -- r continued to get paid

without a contract, uh, until June 30th.

o. And r know you said that you were a writer there for
a specific -- was it that you did __

A. UÍr, weIl, mainly f wrote, uh, this daily or nearly

daily blog. On, ür.¡ we basically, media and politics

The Nation Co. Ltd partners - O3/LO/1.5
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Thel{ation.
33 lRvlNG PI^CE, NEWYORK Nr l@0$2332IEl; l2l2l209-51æ FAt l2l2l?8,¿-t000 E+,lAlb I(ATOIHEI.IAÍþN.CO ,l

I(ATRINA VA}.IDEN HEUVEL

EDITOR & AIBLISHER

Febnrary lt,20l0

Greg Mitchell
7 Townsend Avenue
Nyack,l{Y 10960

Dear Greg,

I am occited we will be workíng togsther in these tt¡rbulent challenging times. Let me lay

out our arrangernent:

t You will writdmanage new blog; focused on the media, o<clusively for thenationcom. It
will launch March 2010, ûo run for one yea¡ - with hope $¡e r€new then. (We will ensu¡e

blog launches in March even if CMS not yet fully in place.)

+ We will provide you with freelance payment of $46,800.

I We will also provide blog-relafed o(penses, including tips to I.IYC for Nation business,

of up to $2500 druing this one year period. (As agr€eq we nay well srcceed this amount if
travel for conferenceVmediarequires it - expenses to be approved by me.)

* You'd work at home; post items directly to the blog; and we'd assþ you an acc intern

who could fill in at times when needed-- even ifjust posting links.

+ The blog -. we must rustle up a punchy name! - will focus on the media, with tsome*

politics and culture, but heaviest on (aII aspects of) media; it will be updated several times

aday; it will consist of shortish items, with some analysis, videos, links, and imqges....I

like idea of soliciting contíbutions from editors and others in Nation familyl as well as

tips from reilders. 'We could talk a bit more about tond but it should have informal and

appealingquality without losing süong analyücal edge. I'd also propose that you might
occasionally and as wananted, do longer posts/iterns.

*I'IVe'd like you consider doing a "cheat sheet"; I do ttrink that could be ver)' strong taffic
geneqlor for this. Of couse, we need to talk more about this and fonnat and frame but

would like to think this works as part of blog.

OPdtød.ü'!öd',9g.

HRG EX# ER EX#



* It would be welcome if you coutd be part of key Nation meetings, panels, events.

* V/ould ask that you identify/affiliate yourself as/with The Nation in yoru media
appearances.

* And, of course, it will be important for for the success of the blog for you to promote
it via Twitter and yoru personal blog. of course, we'd promote it too!

* I'd work with you to see what is possible regarding a book contract at Nation
Institute/lrladon Books/ which is, as you know, in dLp tuansition. And if there are Nationprint pieces, we'd work out a standa¡d payment separate from this arrange,nrent.

My aurbitions for this blog ar€ very high! I want to ensure it has real impact and a good
and growing audience' I agree with you that media for better or worse, is one of few
UNITERS in
and believe it 

about a prominent, active media blog

etc) and drive 
web priorities this year with cMS

The contents of this agreernent a¡e to be kept *private and confidential*

(
a, l^rìr-¡- ur-.J.,. Ik-t ¿

- --làtrina vanden Heuvel

P'n(ò
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KIM - WITNESS

A. Uß, it varies from time-to-time. I think, right now,

we have about 15.

BY ALJ DOMINIQUE

O. Are they aJ-J- freel_ance?

A. No. So they're a mixture of staff writers who are in

the union, who are paid employees. Um, and a

freelancers.

O. And what's the distinction between the btoggers that

are freelance and those that work for the

A. Right. So -- so -- so the staff writers we haver urn,

and they editorsr umr f can compel them to r^/rote

about certain subjects. I can compel them to cover

things. Um, we don't pay them additionaJ-ty for their

writing either for print or for online. Um, uh,

I -- I assign them things to edit, when to file, how

to file.

Um, with freel_ance writers it's a negotiated

relationshl-p. Your urTì -- they pitch things. Um, r^re

may take some j_deas. lVe may suggest some ideas but

it's really their¡ ufr -- their caÌl whether they

cover something or not and how they cover it j-n

particular.

BY MR. SILVERMAN

O. And when you say you evaluated, uR, the, uh, bl_ogging

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners - 03/I0/I5 44
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KIM - WITNESS

them. If you are merely a freelance writer you want

to get your foot in that door. You want to pitch

ideas that are -- are consistent with that magazine's

interests so, af course, I think aII writers

would -- would Iisten to thatr urtrr um, suggestion.

ALJ DOMINIQUEBY

a. Was Mr. Mitchell free to say, for example, I disagree

with that and then go on his own?

Absolutely. Absolutely.

MR. MITCHELL

A.

BY

a. But in your opinion if I disagreed, uh, again with

Katrina vanden HeuveI on ideasr um, strong urgings

that she made --

r--A.

o.

A.

-- would I just be, oh, thatrs

I think that if you're if yourr uñr interests were

extremely divergent from what the magazine produces

then like any writer, ümr we would hesitate to

publish you, eventually.

Uh-huh.

UITI, within the broad scope of The Nationts interests,

uR, I think we take it as a point of pride that we

actually aJIow our writers to have very diverged

opinions. If you- actually read our pages, there are

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners - 03/10/ß 52
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MTTCHELL - !{TTNESS

terms of -- of editing of it, copy editing. And just

general, l-rm, editors looking at it and commenting,

you know, I I get e-maj_ls from Katrina for exampJ_e

sayi-ng, oh, thatrs a great column, maybe you should

add this link. Or have you seen this story, you

know, maybe you want to add this r-ink or whatever so,

I certainly, uh, uh, f -- and they r^rere not obsessed

with what r was writing but certainry r -- r had the

sense there was a lot of people paying attention and

I would get comments on what f posted.

Did you have to send reports?

No. I donrt think reports probably is not, urn,

I -- f don't know. f guess not.

And did you need any equipment to do your work?

Just my ohrn, um -- my ovJn laptop.

How did you identify yourself to third parties?

Generally it was Nation writer.

Did you have to provide notice that you needed,

um -- you were not available or needed some time off?
f certainly did to Katrina. you know, I said, I'm
going away for a week or, you know, f tÍt, um, urn, our

power's off, uh, Hurricane Sandy has hit, and Irm,

you know, I'm in a hotel for two weeks, um, going on

a.

À.

o.

A.

a.

À.

o.

A.

a vacation for 10 days. Um --

The Nation Co. Ltd partners - O3/LO/IS
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

free I -- I never thought I was free to write

anything. You know, there's this is your blog

but, urtrr I -- I certainly never felt that geez, f

could write anything. And I -- I have to stay more

or less within the agreed, uIIìr you know, subject

matter for that time. You know, media and politics

or when I was only covering !,likileaks for a few

months and then I was onJ-y covering Occupy f'IaII

Street

[,lho decided that it would only --

Pardon?

o.

A.

o. lrlho decided that it would only be Èhe I'lall Street,

uh, uh, Occupy ['latl StreeÈ during those periods?

Um, I think it was kind of collaborative in a way.

If I -- in both -- in both those cases I had started

writing about them because they were enQrmously

important for The Nation audience. Um, and I kept

writing about them which would have been expected for

a week or two and then they became in both cases the

most popular thing on the entire site, every single

deyi Um, ana tn"t continued for months, really.

And so, you know, that was and I -- I liked that.

It was good to write something that was so popular

but The Nation also liked it because it was a real

A.

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners - 05/27/L5

ß - /E(t\

22



1

2

3

4

5

6

'l

B

9

l_0

11_

L2

13

I4

15

I6

I1

18

T9

20

2L

22

23

24

25

MITCHELL - WITNESS

Someonetoifthat'syourquestion.Icou]-dhave

hired someone to do research for the blog that I

would then write an articl-e based on this '

A. Okay. Um, and you talked about -- when the Judge

asked you some questions about when Katrina asked you

to, ulll, certain topics, ulllr there were times where

you accepted those and times that you didn't

A. Right.

O. But I want to ask the other way' \^rere there times

where you suggested topics to, ulf,r Ms. vanden Heuvel?

A. Oh. That's the question. Ufi, specific topics on a

given day, uITl, I'm sure it happened' Um, it was not

that common. vÙhat was more common was \^ie -- we]l, wê

did haver unì, disagreements at times when I wanted to

shift focus to a different subject, or a different,

going into, a whole different topic for a while or

for a change of f ocus for the bJ-og. And she and

Richard Kim woul-d talk about it and then sâY, no'

But in terms of any specific day where I would say, I

woul-dn't have to generally get an okay from her,

tike, you know, here's an idea, for something' Is it

okay? I -- I think it happened -- now that I think

of it, it happened sometimesr ulllr when there was a

l-ot of coverage for a specif ic subiect. Like

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners - 05/21/15 41
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the day even into the into the
morning, sometimes. Um, f woul_d

could say, what's interest me in
subject area that f was supposed

media and politics.

Okay. So generally had to do __ had something to do
with media, intersection with politics generalLy.
And, u¡tt, so f wou].d often have freedom to sây, okay,
what interest me. Um, what would I like to write
about today. lrlhat seems most important.
What -- what,s the best for my blog or for __ for The
Nation' um, but there were many other times where r
would get a note, generally from Katrina, sometimes
from, uR, ullt, someone e].se, qenerally, u[t, Ms. vanden
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be,

this

hours of the

you know, f

fo cover which was

the broad

Heuvelr ufltr saying, why don,t
really should cover this. Or

Ianguage. And again, I have

o.

can submit.

Yeah' but did -- think about the exampres. But courd
you saidr Do? f don't like f don,t Want to
discuss that.

Yeah. J I could- But remember, she r^ras the
editor, the pubJ_isher, the co_owner and a board
member of The Nation, uft, The Nation entity. Utn, so

A.

,4 -Io G)

you cover this. Or you

or there's different
15 examples here which I
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MITCHELLI- V{ITNESS

yês, I could theoretically. I I mightr urrtr be

able to say, no. f mean, occasionally f say, no.

,Just just just didn't respond. I didn't say

Ifm not going to do that. you know, sue me. you

know, I just didn't do it.
More often than not, r did then cover that the next

day or two days later or something r.ike that because

I feltr tou know, she's just the the in most

people's mind she is The Nation, you know, and I
didnrt feel I had the, um, you know, f could risk
alienating her and just refusing time after time to
now do what she was urging.

a. Okay. So the times you didn't outright say, no.

you just Let it go and you didn't

Right.

-- write about that.

A.

a.

A.

o.

A.

There were timesr leah. Uh-huh.

Did you hear anything about it afterwards?

f donrt think so. I mean, I don't think she said

what -- whatever happened to that? Um, she might

have. f ftm not sure. General1y -_ generally

was, umr you know, I just didn't there were a

of things I r,ras covering. A lot of interesting
things I was covering. But a lot of things were,
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- WTTNESS

To edi-t Mr. Mitchel-l?

Um, again, I I woul-dn't cal-I this editing. I

woul-d say this is all just quality controJ-. Uflì, it

was to make sure; again, the links were rì_ght. It

was properly entered into the blog back end, urn¡

there r^/ere it the images were sized correctly

all -- all that stuff. It wasnrt editing on the

content level. UÍì, that's, you know, that's what I

would do with writers.

Do you know how Mr. Mitchell- was paid?

I believe it was in monthJ-y install-ments.

hias it direct deposit?

0.

A.

o.

A. Um, I -- I don't know that. Um, Mary van Vafkenburg

would know that.

And did he have to submit anything to get payment?

Um, f don't know that. Mary van Valkenburg would

know that.

Did he have to maintain any insurance, workers'

compensation?

o.

A.

o.

A.

o.

I don't I would not know that

Did the cl-aimant have any expenses rel-ated to doing

A

this, urrìr work?

Um, I believe the contract, uffi, uR, puts out

for expenses related. I don't know if those

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners - 03/I0/15
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Um, it varies from time-to-time. f think, right now,

we have about 15.

ALJ DOMINIQUE

Are they aIl freelance?

BY

o.

A. No. So they're a mixture of staff writers who are in

the union, who are paid employees. Um, and a

freelancers.

And what's the distinction between the bloggers that

are freelance and those that work for t,he

Right. So -- so -- so the staff writers we haver ufrr

and they editorsr ullrr f can compel them to vrrote

about certain subjects. I can compel them to cover

things. UITI, we don't pay them additionally for their

writing either for print or for online. Um, uh,

I -- f assign them things to edit, when to file, höw

to file.

o.

A.

Um, with freelance writers it's a negotiated

relationship. You, um -- they pitch things. Utn, we

may take some ideas. !'le may suggest some ideas but

it's really theirr um -- their call whether they

cover something or not and how they cover it in

particulai.

BY MR. SILVERMAN
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KIM - WITNESS

them. If you are merely a freelance writer you want

to get your foot in that door ' You want to pitch

ideasthatareareconsistentwiththatmagazine's

interests so, of course, I think al-l writers

would -- would Iisten to that¡ ufr' ulTlr suggestion'

ALJ DOMINIQUE

Was Mr. Mitchell free to sây, for example' I disagree

with that and then go on his own?

AbsoluteIY. AbsolutelY'

MR. MITCHELL

But in your opinion if I disagreed' uh' agal-n with

Katrina vanden Heuvel on ideasr uR' strong urgings

that she made

BY

a.

A.

BY

O.

A.

a.

A.

r--
-- would I just be, oh, that's

I think that if you're if yourr uITl' interests were

extremel-y divergent from what the magazine produces

then like any \¡rriter, uflì, we woul-d hesitate to

publish You, eventuallY.

Uh-huh.

Um, within the broad scope of The Nation's interests'

uflì, I think we take it as a point of pride that we

actually aJ-Iow our writers to have very diverged

opinions. If you actual-Iy read our pages' there are

o

A
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MITCHELL - IlTTNESS

terms of -- of editing of it, copy editing. And just

general¡ u.rn¡ editors Iooking at it and commenting,

you know, I I get e-mails from Katrina for example

saying, oh, that's a great column, maybe you should

add this link. Or have you seen this story, you

know, maybe you want to add this link or whatever so,

I certainly, uh, uh, I -- and they '¡rere not obsessed

with what f was writing but certainly I -- I had the

sense there was a lot of people paying attention and

I would get comments on what I posted.

Did you have to send reports?

No. f donrt think reports probably is notr uR,

o.

A.

o.

A.

o.

A.

o.

I -- I don't. know. f guess not.

And did you need any equipment to do your work?

Just my ohrn, üR -- my own laptop.

How did you identify yourself to third parties?

General-Iy it was Nation writer.

Did you have to provide notice that you needed,

um -- you were not avail-able or needed some tíme off?

I certainly did to Katrina. You know, I said, I'm

going av/ay for a week or, you know, f tm, uR, um, our

power's off, uh, Hurricane Sandy has hit, and I'm,

you know, I'm in a hotel for two weeks, üR, going on

a vacation for 10 days. Um --

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners - 03/I0/I5 89
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MITCHELL . V'lITNESS

free I -- I never thought I was free to write

anything. You know, there's this is your blog

but, urTr, I -- I certainty never felt that. geez, L

coul-d write anythì-ng. And I -- I have to stay more

or less within the agreed, uÍr, you know, subject

matter for that time. You know, media and politics

or when I was onJ-y covering !Ìikileaks for a few

months and then I was onJ-y covering Occupy hlal-l

Street.

hlho decided that it would only --

Pardon?

a.

A.

a. !ùho decided that it would only be the Wal-l Street,

uh, uh, Occupy WalI Street during those periods?

Ufir, I think it was kind of colÌaborative in a way.

If I -- in both -- in both those cases I had started

writing about them because they þrere enormously

important f or The Nation audience. UrTr, and I kept

writing about them which would have been expected for

a week or two and then they became in both cases the

most popular thing on the entire site, every single

day. Uil, and that continued for months, real-ly.

And sor lou know, that was and I -- I liked that.

It was good to write something that b/as so popular

but The Nation al-so liked it because it was a real

A.
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VANDEN HEUVEL - V{ITNESS

on my ohrn change the overall focus of the blog?

Not -- not not one individual piece for that day

but if suddenly f started writing regularly about

something --

A. I mean, there was a broad -- again I -- there

hras -- an interest in you because of your expertise

as someone who had shohrn, you know, in an independent

different way, the media the media criticism.

Media criticism can be stretched and thought through

and redefined and broadened.

O. Uh-huh.

A. But that was the general- mandate. But my memory is

you did go off j-n some other areas occasionally and I

don't recalJ- saying, pull back or anyone doing at The

Nation.

0. But do you recall me ever going off into another are

for, you know, weeks and then you --

A. Not weeks. But as I mentioned you -- you had your

or¡rn personal passions, you know, upton St. claire,

the Beethoven. You did that occasionally.

o. Right. But -- well, let me -- do get a good example,

ask you about. Was I -- do you recall when I wanted

to quit the lrJikj_Leaks focus after five months or

something, do you recaLl_ telling me I had to continue

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners - 05/21/15 109
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MITCHELL _ WITNESS

y€s, I coul-d theoreticall-y. I I might.r unì, be

able to say, no. I mean, occasionally f say, no.

Just just just didn't respond. I didn't say

Irm not going to do that. You know, sue me. You

know, I just didn't do it.

More often than not, I did then cover that the next

day or two days later or something like that because

I felt, you know, she's just the the in most

people's mind she is The Nation, you know, and f

didn't feel I had the, urr you know, I could risk

alienating her and just refusing time after time to

0.

now do what she was urging.

Okay. So the times you didn't outright sây, no. But

you just let it go and you didn't

Right.

-- write about that.

A.

a.

A.

O.

A.

There were times, yeah. Uh-huh.

Did you hear anything about it afterwards?

I don't think so. I mean, f don,t think she said

what -- whatever happened t.o that? Um, she might

have. I I'm noL sure. Generally -- generally it

was, umr you know, I just didn't there brere a lot

of things I was covering. A l_ot of interesting

things f was coverinq. But a l_ot of things were, you

The Nation Co. Ltd. Parrners - 05/2i/I5 15
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

the day even into the -- into the

morning, sometimes. Um, I wouLd

could say, what's interest me in
subject area that I was supposed

media and politics.

Okay. So generally had to do -- had something to dc

with media, intersection with poritÍcd generarry.

And, urrìr so f would often have freedom to say, okay,

what interest me. Um, what would I like to wrÍte
about today. llhat seems most important.

What -- whatfs the best for my blog or for for Th

Nation. Um, but there were many other times where I
would get a note, generally from Katrina, sometimes

from, urnr urrtr someone else, generally, um, Ms. vande

Heuvelr urrtr saying, why don't you cover this. Or yo,

really should cover this. or -- or there's differen
Ianguage.Andagain,Ihave15examplesherewhich

can submit.

Yeah, but did -- think about the exampr-es. But cou-r-c

you said, no? I don't like I don't 
'+ant 

to
discuss that.

wee hours of the

be, you know, I

this the broad

to cover which was

o.

A. Yeah. I I coul_d- But remember, she was the

editor, the pubJ.isher, the co-owner and a board

member of The Nation, u*r The Nation entity. UrTr, so

The Nation Co. Ltd. p
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KIM - II]ITNESS

would give them, the angle, the opinions expressed

within. Um, where he would l-ink to. That was all

determined by, uITr, Mr. Mitchell.

Before it was published to the public, made avail-ableO.

to the public was there a due process for his work?

A. UrTr, so that the it varied throughout the course

of the relationship. At some points there was. It

just went up. Um, as we as my staff greh, we

really needed to -- to maintain quality control over

everything that was published so there was a review

of it for, uÍì, it's, urTr, urrìr you know, its adherence

to our standards, urTr, in terms of just grammar, copy

and editing, uft¡ working Iinks, images sized

correctJ-y.

o. And at what point and time so you said he worked

there February 2010 to June 2014?

Yes.

And at what point and time did that review start?

Huh, you know, I don't I don't real-Iy -- f can't

remember correctly?

l{as it for a few months before his time ended, a

coupì-e

No.

A.

O.

A.

0.

A

O of years?
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MITCHELL - h¡ITNESS

I

Now, I -- I would be sitting at home. f would file

my story for that day viar um, The Nation sign

on -- I woul-d sign onto The Nation site. Okay.

Press a button. My story woul_d get posted or

would -- it would get posted. There might be a delay

in posting. But as soon as I submitted it I was

supposed to contact my intern who would then be the

first person to edit my -- my story. Uh, it might

take five minutes. It might take 30 30 minutes.

I donrt know. Uh, often another Nation editor would

then edit it. Um, I think in some cases they kind of

caught up with it l-ater or whatever but, ufr, if there

htas if the intern had made and -- and this

happened sometimes. The intern made some, you know,

silIy mistake or introduced an error just because

they didn't know, you know, the subject or changed

some writing -- changed something -- writing I didn't

Iike, then I would contact the intern and sometimes

they would, you know, t.hey'd have a good explanation

and be fine. Other times they'd say, oh, yeah.

That's a bad error. Let me go in and fix it.

Interns did not generally write they felt there

t¡ras one particuLar intern who did -- did -- did

writing for me on the b1og. There were a coupJ_e

The Nation Co. Ltd. partners
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KIM - h¡ITNESS

referred to as the style manual there. There is

mayber umr you know, a sheet of information that was

a very basicr üR, guide to Nation style. I wouldn't

call it a manual and it certainly is not the manual

that our copy editors use which is, uflt, you know, I

believe over 100 pages Ìong. That is reall-y just for

our staff to absorb and apply that style to our

content.

o. Okay. So this is referring to the same thing. trthat

you're saying is sort of guidelj-nes for them.

Just technical guidelines for entering things into

the computer system. That's really what the bloggers

received. So j-t's so that they can do that and

theyrre notr urrtr you know, coding errors or broken

links ort um, fields that are checked off improperly.

Um, you know, r¡re really treat that as Sort of the

delivery mechanism for content to come to our editors

who then bring it up tor lou know, the quality

we -- lre need to have it up to to post online.

And it says and you touched on it. Uh, the

A.

o.

determination says that Mr. Mitchell could not work

for competitors if writing on the same subject?

You know, I -- T-, no. That's not. It was it

really hras, umr that the blog would be excLusive to

The Nation Co. Ltd Partners 03/10/É 38
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MITCHELL - ü]ITNESS

O. Um, and if you didn't accept that didn't affect your

writing for the b1og. I mean you were still under

the same contract?

A.

O.

Yeah.

Um, and -- the, um -- the magazj-ne, ufl, didn't supply

you with a computer?

No.

You had your own computer. Where did you work from?

f worked from home. Um, except for, you know, very

few number of visits to The Nation office. Uh, I

worked from home. I used my own fnternet connection.

But you couJ-d blog from anywhere, I suppose. You

could, um -- as long as you had your computer and --

Yeah. I had been -- in fact, during Hurricane Sandy

I, ufr, continued daily since f was in a daily blog

situation on that period I was coveri-ng the 20,

um, 2OI2 campaign every day. ConstantJ-y during the

day and weekends. And so when Hurricane Sandy came I

was stuck in a hotel and stuck out of my house, so I

had to go to places with !,li-Fi.

So you could get online?

Yeah. To get onto Nation.

You couJ-d actually, uh, continue to blog ì-n Germany,

if you wanted, right?

The Nation Co. Ltd. Partners - 04 /f6/15 29
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MITCHELL - !{ITNESS

A. Yeah. But I -- yeah.

O. You could. I'm not saying you did but

A. No. I guess, yeah, I guess.

O. Yeah. Once you had the computer and you had the

A.

o.

A.

access to it

Yeah.

-- what The Nation cared about is get.ting the blog.

ülell, that's because you used The Nation

architecture -- architecture.

a. But the architecture provides that someone

can -- once they get on the system they can get on

the system from anyplace?

I believe thatrs true.

Um, and, umr what hours did you work?

ülell, it was it it varied because there were

different stages of this b1og. You know, there was

stage the first

ALJ DOMINIQUE: The question was asked and

answered. Are you saying

MR. SILVERMAN: t¡'lhat?

ALJ DOMINIQUE: That question was asked and

answered.

MR. SILVERMAN: i¡lhat hours he worked?

ALJ DOMINIQUE: Correct.

A.

O.

A.
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MTTCHELL - !{TTNESS

clear to me that they rearly wourd rike the stories
posted by noon because it gave them, A, a chance to
edit them, B, a chance to decide what was they
were going to feature on the blog for that day. Um,

traffic as best in the middle of the day.

Um, public -- publicity get pubJ_icity for the rest of
the day, end up on TV or whatever.

So in my mind there certainly was¡ _um¡ a __ a lot of
guidance to -- to work in the morning. I didn,t __ I
certainly dj_dn't feel I had the option of weII, f ,m
gonna take morning off, you know, come back at 3 p.m.

and start posting. Uh, never felt that.
I¡lhere did you perform your work?

At home?

a.

A.

o.

A.

Whose decision was it for

WeIl, it was mine. But as

didn't have office space.

âny, um, you know, choice.

o.

A.

Were you given, urn, deadlines?

llellr !es, again, as I said, um, on a __ if you had a

dail-y blog, you had to blog daily, and, um, um,

ideally in, you know, sometime morning.

Was your work reviewed or required approval?

Uh, certainly it was heavily.reviewed., urn, both in
The Nation Co. Ltd partners _ O3/IO/ß 88
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KIM _ !{ITNESS

The Nation. That his content would be exclusive to

us.

O. If Lhere was content on the bl-og that Mr. Mitchell

say hranted to also write about for sây, Lth, for

Huffington Post, could he do that?

Um, in terms of the subject matLer, y€s. And

he he did, I believe. Um --

So what was it that he coul_d not do?

Uln, he he, um -- that the content that he actual-Iy

wrote, the actual sentences had to be excl-usive to

us. And this is standard ì-n publishing. hle, as the

magazine cannot have their articles be republished by

other places or place in different places. Uh, in

the journalism profession that woul-d be considered

self-pJ-agiarism on the part of the writer and on the

part of other outlets it would be considered

copyright infringement. So, ufrr everything that we

publish at The Nation, ufrr whether it's staff writers

or freel-ancers has to be exclusi-ve to The Nation.

The determinatj-on al-so says that he would sometimes

have Mr. Mitchell- come into the office.

Um, you know, I -- I think during my time he was

there very rarely, maybe once a year at that.

And was it -- would it be his decision to come in?

A.

O.

A.

O.

A.

a.

The Natron Co. Ltd Partners - 03/I0/L5
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

to 2,500 for -- mainJ-y for travel- but I only went to

a couple of conferences. There was one conference in

Boston I spoke at. Um, but I rarelY, if

ever -- except for that pace and maybe one other f

didn't really file a -- expense -- expenses with

them.

O. Did you receive¡ rJrn¡ compensation for expenses or did

you -- or -- did you have to do anything?

A.

o.

A.

Receipts, yeah. Uh-huh. Sure.

Did you receive any training or orientation?

Um, well, training in the sense of, urn, you know,

as -- as he mentioned, üflr ufrr lfeb site, urlr, um,

rules and lfeb site, what f would -- he -- he didn't

want to call- it a style manual- but there hras

certainly style. You know, this is how you want

to -- submit things and this is, uh, you know, basj-c

rules you should follow. I mean it went beyond

just -- here's how you press the button to get this

thing posted, it was also general guideJ-ines.

O. Now, when you started working there, uft, did you ever

receive any instructions from the -- any staff

mem-bers ?

A- Not really. No. T, urTì., instructions. No,

I -- I -- I don't think so.
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A.

o.

A.

a.

A.

o.

A.

- !ì¡ITNESS

No.

It says he had an established work schedule?

No. That's incorrect.

And that he had to submit rePorts.

That is also incorrect.

It says, uh, he was provided training

Yes. On -- on the CMS. On how to enter content into

our content management system.

lVhat is CMS?

Uh, it it's short for content management system.

It's just the way words get into a V,leb site and

posted online.

And, uh, the determinatj-on talks about Mr. Mitchell

not being able to refuse work assignments.

That's that's incorrect. And in fact, I -- you

know, there were oftentimes editors might send him

ideas, hey these things were happening in the world

and it was real-ly totall-y his discretion whether or

not he would write about them. So there brere

definitely suggestions made, that is the role of

editors with writers to, utr, you know, heJ-p guide

their, uh, choices. Tor uln, frame things in a

certai-n manner but with writers it's their choice

whether to pursue that matter or not.

a.

A.

O.

A.
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MITCHELL - I{ITNESS

a. Íüere you ever -- did you ever receive any work

assignments?

A. l{elL, you know, you mean beyond the daily, urn, thing?

Um, actua1ly, I did -- f mean, he -- he mentioned,

um, some articles for print which was different. I

was paid separately. It was like, okay, you're a

freeÌance, would you do this for us and we'II pay you

extra money. Um, but I also had, um, several cases

where Katrina, u¡n, vanden Heuver asked me beyond the

scope of my b1og, beyond the scope of what my

contract to review something she'd written, um, maybe

for The Nation or for the !{ashington post or

something. To comment on it, uR, um, give her

feedback on something she'd -- you know, she'd done.

Um, also there was a major, um, that they tried to do

their own [rrikileaks project, l¡rn, and r was sort of a

wikileaks expert and so they asked me to, u¡., consur-t

on this sort of major $likileaks project which is
again a -- beyond the scope of my contract and my

blog. Um, they also were, urn, considering __ I don,t

think they did calred a Murdoch !ùatch, um, a whor-e

separate project about Rupert Murdoch and again r was

called on to consult and, um, you know, and advise

and put some time in again outside the scope of
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MITCHELL - WITNESS

A. Right. So the nature of the job requires it so

obviously you would then (unintelligible' one second,

0:30:38) work daily?

A. Yeah.

O. so --
A. Right. Not necessarilY at 7 a.m.

O. But I -- I mean, would it be if you obviously you

wanted to post it by 9 o'clock you would have to work

before 9 o'clock?

A. Yeah. Right.

0. Okay. And how were you compensated for this other

work that you did other than the blog. Like articles

for publication.

A. I was paid, ufrr separately. It was not part of my

contract. ft was not was expected to me. I hras

always paid -- even when they took a l-ittle snippet.s

of something I had written online and put it in the

magazine; f'd get $35 or something. Um, so I mean it

hras understood anything for print was, urt, definitely

get some extra money.

A. Separate separate for

A. Yes. Right.

0. um --
A. f never got paid anything
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MTTCHELL - lVITNESS

0. !{ere you ever -- did you ever receive any work

assignments ?

A. !'1e11, you know, you mean beyond the daily, um, thing?

Um, actual-Iy, I did -- I mean, he -- he mentioned,

urnr some articl-es for print which was different. I

was paid separatel-y. ft was like, okay, yourre a

freeJ-ance, would you do this for us and we'Il pay you

extra money. Um, but f also had, urn, several cases

where Katrinar tffrr vanden Heuvel asked me beyond the

scope of my blog, beyond the scope of what my

contract to review something she'd written, um, maybe

for The Nation or for the lrlashington Post or

something. To comment on it, urTtr üfrr give her

feedback on something she'd -- you know, she'd done.

Um, al-so there was a major, ufr, that they tried to do

their own lrlikileaks projectr urn¡ and f was sort of a

9ùikileaks expert and so they asked me to, um, consult

on this sort of major lrlj-kiI,eaks project which is

again a -- beyond the scope of my contract and my

blog. Um, they also tórerer urrtr considering -- I don't

think they did called a Murdoch Watch, ltrn, a whol_e

separate project about Rupert Murdoch and again I was

called on to consult and, uR, you know, and advise

and put some time in again outside the scope of
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MTTCHELL . WTTNESS

terms of -- of editing of it, copy editing. And just
general¡ lLr¡ editors rooking at it and commenting,

you know, f -- I get e-maj_Is from Katrina for example

saying, oh, thatrs a great column, maybe you should

add this link. Or have you seen this story, you

know, maybe you want to add this rink or whatever so,

r certainly, uh, uh, r -- and they vrere not obsessed

with what r was writing but certainly r -- r had the
sense there was a lot of people paying attention and

f would get comments on what f posted.

A. Did you have to send reports?

A. No. I don't think reports probably is notr umr

0.

A.

a.

A.

O.

I -- f don't know. f guess not.

And did you need any equipment to do your work?

Just my oürn, um -- my own laptop.

How did you identify yourself to third parties?
Generall_y it was Nation writer.

Did you have to provide notice that you needed,

um -- you ürere not available or needed some time off?
f certainly did to Katrina. you know, I said, Irm
going away for a week or, you know, I,m, um, um, our
power's otf, uh, Hurricane Sandy has hit, and f,m,
you know, f tm in a hotel for two weeks¡ ul.n¡ going on

a vacation for 10 days. Um __
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MITCHELL - !,IITNESS

want you to stick on Wikileaks, so it kind of started

out -- I just -- it kind of happened accidently, I

just started it and then it became this bit

phenomenon and, um -- and then they wanted me to

stick with it, even after I had sort of wanted to

move on so --

A. Ífhat krere your work hours?

A. !{e11, I it varied, uh, you know, I had, um, uñr

you know, that firstr uft -- first months we talked

about I had to get up early and post this Daybook.

You know, and I might be done by 10 o'clock or 1l-

o'clock in the morning and then I'd have to update a

little bit during the day.

Um, the -- with the ûlikileaks and Occupy Í,la1l Street

it was al-most 24/1 . I could be up Lo 2 in the

morning, ufrr covering somethinq -- something that was

being covered online or, um -- or on a neb¡spaper

si-te. Um, it really almost was 24 or at least LB/1 .

Um, and, urn, üfr, so there was that. There were days

when I wrote what you might more consider a column,

you know, 9et up and say, I'm just going to write on

one subject today and I know they -- they'd like me

to get it up by noon so I'm going to take morning,

and write on one subject a little Ionger and then
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frll try to get up at noon. you know, they,d like
that and that would be it.

So there were days when f was done by noon or 1

o'cl-ock. There were days f was _- was up half the
night.

a. Did you, um, basically work, um, every day, Monday

through Fridays?

A' Yeah' Almost- r would say. There Ìârere days when

J -- when I didn't work if I if I had been, um,

doing a 1ot of stuff, uh, and, uh __ and Richard
mentioned there was a __ a rather brief period l_ast
year where __ and again, this is another example of
how f was, um -- f didn,t have the freedom to do

exactly what f wanted. I was told that __ okay, râ/e

want you to start writing a weekly -- basicarly a

weekry column, um, and that's going to be a better
way for the blog to work and f said, I donrt __ I
disagree f think, you know, posting every day or
three days a week or something is __ is much better
and, um, they said, no. [,fe think, um, writing once a

week is going to be better, longer and so f went
along with it for a couple of months. rt didn,t work
out very well- and then went back to the daily blog.

0. !{ho was it that set your work hours?
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MITCHELL - !{ITNESS

A. Pardon?

O. !{ho set your work hours?

A. Um, welI, it -- it -- it -- I mean, it -- I guess, I

did except within the demands of having to get the

work done by a certain time. Get a -- get a lot of

work done by whether it was 9:30 or noon or whatever,

um, and the demands, you know, the Wikileaks and

Occupy blogs, theyrre sort of referred to as live

bl-ogs. Um, meaning yourre kind of expected to update

every, you know, as things happen which could be

every hour or every 20 minutes or every two hours.

So it was kind of out of my hands at that point. I

kind of had to keep up with it continually.

0. What r,rere those hours that you said that you had to

get work done?

A. Um, excuse me.

a. Uh, you testified that you said your work hours ü¡ere

set within those hours within you had to complete

your work.

A. !{ell-, it -- it would vary, uh, I mean, it would vary

depending which of these phases I was in. Um, I

had -- as f mentioned earlier there was certainly a

sense, even in the days where there was not -- this

live blog going on. all day, um, that The Nation made
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MITCHELL - !{ITNESS

'clear to me that they really woul-d Like the stories
posted þy noon because it gave them, A, a chance to

edit them, B, a chance to decide what was -- they

Ì¡rere goj-ng to feature on the blog for that day. Um,

traffic as best in the middle of the day.

um, public -- pubricity get pubricity for the rest of
the day, end up on TV or whatever.

So in my mind there certainly was, um, a -- a Iot of
guidance to -- to work in the morning. I didnrt -- f
certainLy didnrt feel r had ttre oition of werr-, r,m
gonna take morning off, you know, come back at 3 p.m.

and start posting. Uh, never felt that.
lrlhere did you perform your work?

At home?

l{hose decision was it for you to work from home?

!,1e11, it was mine. But as he said, they vùere -_ they

didn't have office space. So f realÌy didn't have

any, um, you know, choice.

Were you given, u¡n, deadlines?

!{ell-r }es, again, as f said, um, on a -- if you had a

daily b1og, you had to blog daily, and, um, um,

ideally in, you know, sometime morning.

a.

A.

o.

A.

o.

A.

a. lfas your work reviewed or required approval?

A. Uh, certainly it was heavily reviewed, urn, both in
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KIM - WITNESS

A.

have a daily thing you have to do?

ft's it's, um, deprecations Ënat there would be a

post created in that window.

Right.o.

A. Um, certainly we prefer business hours, certainly in
the morni-ng.

Okay.

Um, uh, you know, there were no consequences if you

didnrt do it on any particular day.

Right.

Before noon or 1 or 2 or --
Right.

?
J.

Right. Right. But there would be

ALJ DOMINIQUE

So the, uh -- the, uh -- The Nation Magazine wanted

Mr. Mitcherr to cr -- um, to pubrish the post between

10 and, uh, 6?

o.

A.

a.

A.

o.

A.

o.

BY

o.

A. That -- again that's rearly just because that's when

ure r^rere staffed. Í{e have people there that. can read

it, put it up, put in in social media. Um, there are

many times when Mr. Mitchell creat.ed content outside

of that window, um, _on his own volition.

.BY MR. MITCHELL
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VANDEN HEUVEL - WITNESS

and you were covering that. Did someone say you must

have it by midnight? I do not recal_Ì.

O. Okay. But woul_d you -- is it your, uh --

A. My memory if there h/ere deadlines hras that you wouJ-d

e-maiÌ because there was concerned that the, umr

inside staff was not posting your material_ in a way

you felt was timely. It was generated largely from

your end, the concern about deadlines or appearance

of blogs.

O. But if someone is it your belief that if someone

has a daily, you know, for -- for -- has a daily

reguJ-ar feature on the lrleb site. That does not

constitute a daily deadline, essentialJ_y?

A. rt was yourr urf,r decision to define what daiJ-y meant.

Because daiJ_y also meant filing through the day as I

recall you did on numerous occasions. So there was

no assignment as to defining daily. Or --

O. How -- how ei.se can you define daily except daily?

A. Daily was part of -- but you you chose when within

that 2{-h^our cycle to post. lrjhether it was early in

the morning or sometime in the afternoon. ft was

your decision. Because you were given the -- the

priority and mandate to sel_ect topics you were

writing about. you coul_d choose if a trial_ was
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VANDEN HEUVEL - WITNESS

conducted at noon --

a. So would it be correct to say that you -- your sort

of definition of daily means is attached to l-ike

the hour of -- of time periods as opposed

to you're expected to do something every day so

it's a daily deadline?

A. My larger understanding is that it was within your

purview t.o decide when during the day you were going

to post. And, you know, generaJ_ly, you weren't

posting on weekends. And there were times taken off

without, um -- it was your decision when to take off

to travel-. Um, you checked with us but we were not

mandating, you must not go off then; you must go off

nohr.

O. Okay. Um, is it accurate to say that you never did

anything -- I take that back. Um, wouÌd you agree to

the statement that there was no oversite whatsoever

of me in those four years?

A. I -- you know, there was no you're not onsite.

There was no oversite as to the hours you were

working. It was your decision to choose those hours.

Um, I do not recall_r unì¡ really ever turning to you

and saying why dì-d you write this or how could you

write this or, ultì, it was a matter of you selecting
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